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Consent order requiring a Chicago. Ill., catalog retailer to cease violating the
Truth in Lending Ad b;V failng to disclose in its credit life and disability
insurance its flllJHwl pcrcentllge rate. the methml of computing its finance
charge. . am! foilng to compl;v ''lith other pro,- isions of Regulation Z of
said Act.

CO)IPL\IXT

Pursuant to the provisions of the Federal Trade Commission Act
and the TnJt h in Lending Act and the implementing regulation pro-
mulgated thereunder. ancl LJy yirtl1e .of the nlthority yest-ed in it by

said Acts , the Federal Trade Commission , ha'Ting re, a::on to believe
that Spiegel , Inc. , f1 corporation , hereinafter referred to as respond-

ent, has yiola,tec1 the provisions of said Acts , and it appearing to the
Commission that a proceeding by it in respect thereof would be in
the pnbl ie interest, hercby issues its complaint staCing its ( hRl'ges

ill that respeet as follows:
PA1LumAPII 1. Respondent Spiegel Tne. : is a corporation organized

existing a1ld doing business nncler and by virtue of the laws of the
State of DelfwflT!,: witl1 irs principlil offee and place of business
located at :2611 \Ye.st 28n1 Street, in the cit.y of Chicag() State of
Illinois.

P-\H. 2. Respondent. is fl, catalog retailer and is noTI, and for some
time last past. has been

, ,

engngec1 in the ac1yertisillg, offering for
sate , snle. and distribution of c.lothing I1m/sehold lpplinnces : kitchen-
,\yare: bedcl ing, furnit1lre" radio : .luggage , tools , tires and various

other article,s oJ merchandise.
p-,\TI. :3. In r.he ordinary conrse RllCl conduct. of its lmsiness as afore-

said : respondent regularJy exte.nc1s : find for some time in the past has
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Tlllarly ,extnded , consumer credit , as "consumer credit" is defined
in Regulation Z , the implementing regulation of the Tl1lth in Lend-
ing Act duly promulgated by the Board of Governors of the FederaJ

Reserve System.

PAR. 4. Subsequent to July 1 , 1969 , in the ordinary course of its
business as aforesaid, and in connection with its credit sales, as
credit sale" is defined in Regnlation Z , respondent has caused to be
delivered imd is delivering to its enstomers periodic statements, as
required by Section 226.7 (b) of Regulation Z. By and through the
use of these periodic statements , respondent:

1. For a period of time after July 1 , 1969 , sold credit life insurance
to be written in connection with its credit sa1es:

(a.) withont obt.aining a specifi( dated and separately signe.caffl'm-
ative written indication of the customer s desire, for such insurance
a.nd

(b) without disclosing the cost of sllch insurance to the cllstomer
in the insurance authorization signed by such customer.

Failing to proyjde for such authorization and disclosure pnrsnant to

Section 226.4(0) (5) of Regulation Z, respondent \Yos required to

include the cost of such insurance in the amount of the iinH,nce
eharge and by failing to - do this, respondent f dled to state the
nrnount of the finance charge accurat.ely, as required by Section
226.7 (b) (4) of Regulation Z, and thereby also failed to state
the annual pe.rcf'ntage rate accurately, as required by Section
226.7(b) (6) of Regulation Z.

2. In some. instances failed 11nd is failing, to disclose the date by
,vhi('h or the period , if any, ,,- ithin which payment of the "New
Balance, :: may be, made to a ,"aiel additional finance charges, as re-
quired by Section 226.7(b) (9) of Regulation Z.

3. Failed to disclose the lower balance to which the periodic rate
applied , ,,-hen application of the periodic rate did not yield an
amount equal to the minimum finance. charge , as required by Sections
226.7(b) (5) of Regulation Z.

4. Arranges the, sequenc.e of certain disclosures on the face of the
aJoresaid periodic statements in the -follO\ving manner:

By and through the use of t.his language and seqmmce of dis-
closures, respondent:

a. Represents, direct.y or by imp1ication that it computes the
iinance charge by applying a pe1'iodic rate to the previous bahnc.e
after dedllct.ing payments and other credits made during the previous
billing cycle. In faet , respondent computes the finance charge on the
prcvious balance before deduct.ing payments or credits. Therefore
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respondent confuses or misleads the customer a.nd obscures or

detracts attention from a certain required disc10sure (the method of
eomputing finance charges which appears on the reverse side of the
periodic sta,tement), contrary to Section 226.7 (c) (4) of Regulation Z.

b. Fails to make the disclosures required by Section 226.7 (b) of

R.egulation Z in a, meaningful sequence, as required by Section

226.6 (a) of Regulation Z.
PAIL 5. In the ordinary course of its business as aforesaid , for a

period of time subsequent to July 1 , 1D6D , respondent caused adver-
tisements to be published , as " a.c1vertisement" is defined in H.egula.
bon Z. These advertisements nided , promoted or assisted direotly or
indirectly extensions of consumer credit in connection ,vith the sale
of rcspondent:s goods. By and through the use of the advertisements
respondent:

1. In its advertising supplement to the " Cincinuflti Enquirer" and
in other direct mail advertiseme-nts , by using the phrase "Send no
moneyt stated directly or by implication that no downpayment was
required , ,,,it-hout also dearly and conspicuously setting forth, in
terminology prescribed in Section 226.7 (b) of Hegulation Z , all items
required by Section 226.10 (c) of Hegulation Z.

2. In a schedule of credit terms contained in all of its catalogs

failed and is failing to (Eselose the lmyer ba1ance to whieh the
periodic rate applies , when application of the periodic rate does not
,yield an a.mount equal to the minimurn finance eharge, as required
by Section 226. 10(c) (4) of Regulation Z.

PAH. 6. Pursuant to Section 103(k) of the Truth in Lending Act
responc1enfs afore.-nic1 failures to comply with the provisions of
Regulation Z constitute ,' iolntions of that Ad and, pursuant to

Section 108 thereof , respondent thereby violated the Federal Trade
Commission Act.

DECISIOX A "-D OUDEH

The Commission having heretofore determined to issue its com-
pJaint charging t.he respondent named in the caption hereof with
iolation of the Truth in Lending Act , and the respondent having

been served with notice of sitch determination a.nd with a copy of the
complaint the Commission intended to issue, together with a pro-
posed form of order; and

The. respondent find counsel for the Commission having therea.iter
executed an agl'eernent containing a consent order , an admission by
the respondent of all the jnrisdictional facts set forth in the afore-
said dra.ft of compJninL n. tatement that the signing of said agree-
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ment is for settle.ment purposes only and does not constitute 
admission hy respondent that the. hI'," has been violated as al1eged
in said complaint , and aiYcrs and other provisions as required by
the Commission s rules; and

The Commission having considered the agreement and having
accepted same and the a,greement containing consent order having
thereupon been p1aced on the pubhe record 1'01' a period of thirty
(30) days , now in further conformity with the procedure prescribed
in Section 2. 34 (b) of its rules the Commission hereby issues its com-
plaint , makes the fol1o ing jurisdictional findings, and enters the

fol1owing order:
1. Respondent Spiegel, Inc. , is a corporation organized , existing

and doing business uncler and by virtue of the la-ws of tl1c State of
Dela\\are , \\'ith its offce and princ.ipal place of business located at
2511 'Vest 23rd Street in the city of Chicago , St.ate of Illinois.

2. The Federal Trade Commission has jurisdiction of the subject
matter of this proceeding and of the responc1ent: and the proceeding

is in the public interest..
ORDER

It is ordo' That rcspondent, Spiegel , Inc. , a corporat.ion, Hnd

its offcers , agents , representatives and employees , directly or through
any corporate or other device, in connection -wLth any extension of
('onsnme1' crerlit or in connection ,,- ith any advertisement to 1tic1
promote, or assist directly any extension of consumer credit, a,
consumer cre,diC rmc1 " achertisemenf' are defined in Rcgl1)ation Z
(12 C. R. 8226) of the Tl'th in Lending Act (Pub.L. 90-321

15 1J. C. 1601 et seg.

), 

shan cense and desist from:
1. Failing. in any credit transaction , to include and to itemize

the runount of premiums -for credit life and disability insurance
as part of the finance charge , 111l1L'ss the, amount of snch pre-
mil111S is exclude,c1 from t11e finance, charge becallse of appropri-
ate exerc.ise of the option available l)1rsuant to Section 226.4(a)
(5) 01' Regulation Z.

2. Failing, on any periodic statement. (except in the case of
an account \Yllich it deems to 1m uncollectible, or \yith respect to
Ivhieh delinquency coDection procedures have been jnstitutec1),

(a) to clearly and conspicllously disclose the corred
amount of 1he finance charge determined in accoTChnce with
Section 226A- of Heguhtion Z, and to itemize and identify
snch linancc charg'" as required by Section 226.7(b) (4) of

Hegulation Z;
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(b) to disclose the "annna1 percentage ncte" computed in
accordance. with Seetioll 226.5 of Hegulation Z , as required
by Section 226.7 (b) (6) of Regulation Z;

(c) to disclose the date by ".hieh or the period, if any,

within ,yhieh payment of the " ne," ba1a.nGe:' ma.y be made
to ayoid additionnJ finnllce charges , as required by Section
226. 7(b) (D) of J\egnlntion Z: and

(d) to disclose the lo,,-er balance to which the periodic
rate applies , when application of the periodic. rate cloes not
yield an amount equal to the minimum finance charge: as

required by Section 226.7 (h) (,,) of Regulation Z.
3. Separating the (1isclosures so as to confuse or mislead the

customer or obscllre or detract attention from the required dis-
closure of the llwthocl of computing finance charges, pursuant to
Section 226.7(G) (4) of Hegulation Z , by representing that it
computes the finance charge in any manner other than that

actually nsecl by respondent.
4:. Hepre enting in any Hcl\-ertisement , cataJog, or brochure

direct.ly or by implication , that no c1mn1pa.yrnent is required

,yithout clearly and conspicuously setting forth , in the termi-

nology prescribed in Section 22G.7 (b) of Regulation Z, each

item reqnirec1 by Section 22(-.10((') of Regulation Z , or, as a.n

alternatiye to the foregoing,

Failing to refer to a chec1tllc or statement of ereclit terms con-
taining the. disclosures reqnir8cl by Section 226. 10(c) of Regula-

tion Z by jncorporating in immediate conjunction ,,,jth the
representation that no clo\Yl1payment is reCIuired, pursuant to

Section 226.10(b) 01' He.gnbtiol1 Z, a statement simihr to the

fol1owing;

If :VOll elect credit . spe credit terms Oil page-

5. Failing, il1 a. schedule of credit, terms in any of its catalogs
or other multiple page acl,-ertjs8ments , to disclose the lower bal-
nl1ce to ,,,bich the periodic rate applies , when lppljcatioD
of the periodic l'flte does not yield an amount equal to the
minimnrn finance charge. as requirecl by Section 226. 10(c) (4)
of RegulnJion Z.

G. FailLng, in Hny consumer cn:.lit transaction or advertise-
ment, to make the. disclosures , determined in a.ccorclance with
Sections :22G.4 and 2:2G.3 of Regulation Z , in the manner , form
and flluount required by Sections 226. , 220. , 22ELS a.nd 226.

of Regulation Z.
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J t is furthei' o?'deTed That respondent, in connection with each
srtle of credit life insurance written in connection with its credit sales
on or rtfter July 1 : 19G9 , in ,,,hieh respondent failed to obtain a spe-
cific c1nte,c1 and separately signed affrmatlye written indication of

the ('lstomer s desire for such insurance and thercaftfT failed to
include the charges for such insnrfmce in the amount of finance
charge debited to the c.nstomer s Hc,count monthly, shall mail to each
cust.omer to ,,-ham such sale of credit life insurance '''as made and

,,-

hose account is in open or current status, the following not.ice, and
aecompfwying letter:

We l1ereb ' supply you with the following information concerning your credit
life iJl,:urance pOlicy:

1. 'The cost of credit life insurance ..,,hieJ1 has been charged to you since you
nvrned this account ,,' jth Spiegel , Inc. is 13 per hundred danaI's of the unpaid
balance.

2. Snch insurance vms not RDd is not required as a condition to Spiegel'
extendiiJt: credit to YOll.

3. Yon Jmn.' a rig:ht to request cancellation of this policy, You may exercise
your right to cancel by signing (on Jine 1) that portion of the enclosed notice

cancelUng yom credit life inSllrance policy and returning it to Spiegel, Ine.,
in the nccompanying self-addre!'sed 0nye10pe. Snch cnncel1ation is effectiye wbell
recein'd by SpiegICl, Inc. Yon understand that once 1mYing cancel1ed you wil
11aye no rights under the vaHey eyen though the policy may haye been in effect
up to the time of cancellation.

-:. If yon desire to continue your credit life insurance policy, you should sign
that portion of the pnclosed notice (on line 2) which indic tes your desire for
imnnmce coverage and return it to Spiegel , Inc, in the accompanying self-
addressed e:nYE love.

Credit Life Insurance :\otice

I hereby request cancellation of my credit life insurance covering thc above

account. I lmc1er:'taml that upon receipt of this cancellation I wil ha'ie no bene-

fits under any insnrancc policy with respect to theabon a('count.

(1) Date
(Sig-nature of ('1\stOI1Cl' in who"e nflnle account is recorded)

I desire to continue my credit life insurance policy.
(2) Date -

(Signature of customer in \dlOse Jlflme account is rccorded)

It is iJ.uportflut that you return this notice before--

_--

Hespondent s obligations nnder this prm:ision shan not be fulfilled
llntil each cllstonH r ai1'ected by it has returned the noUce specified
berein , prodded that as long as respondent can clE'JllOnst.rate that an)'
sl1('h customer cannot bE', contacted 01' that nny such customer failc(1
to reply after respondent expended reasonable efforts , in writing or
orally, to l'ilec:t such reply monthly for it period of four months after
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mailing the notice to snch cnstomer , respondent shall have eomplied
with this provision.

It is further oTdererl That respondent deliver a, eopy of this order
to eeasE' and desist to all present and future personnel of respondent

at its general offces in Chicago ,v11o are engaged as head of the
particular department, in the extension of consumer credit or in
any aspect. of preparation : creation, or placing of advertising and
that respondent secure a signed statement acknowledging recetpt of
said eopy of this order from each such person,

I t is fw,ther ordered That the respondent notify the Commission
at 1east thirty (30) days prior to any proposed change in its corpo-
rate form , snch as dissolution , assigmnent or sale resnlting in the
emergence of a successor corporatioll the creation or dissolution of
3ubsidiaries, or any other changes in the corporation which may

affect. compliance obligations arising ont of this order.
It i8 fWl'theT onlered That the respondent sha1l , ,yit-hin sixty (60)

days after the sel'yice upon it of this order , file with the Commission
a report , in writing: ettiJlg forth in detail the maJlner and fonn in
,yhieh it has compJied with this order.

Ix THE l\IATTEH OF

STE\YART BROTHERS & AL\L\RD CmIPANY , ET AL.

COXSEKT OHDER , ETC. : IX REG,\TIn TO THE . \LLEGED YlOL,\TlOX OF THE

TRLiTH IX LEXDIX(; .\XU TJ-TJ YEnElL\L TlunE CO DIlSSlOX ACTS

Docket C- 2121' COlljJlal11t, JOII. 3, 1.9i' lJeci8ion, .Jan, 3, 1.9'/2

Consent order requiring !l ::l'\yurk, Ohio , c1efller in furniture !lnd app1i!ll1res

to cease Yiolating the Truth ill Lending \ct b:- failing to properly l1 C Oll

instflIlment contrnets the terms ;; final1ce charge,

" .'

casl1 rlo\yn pa nH'nt,"

nnprlicl balance of cash price," " (1Ptl'l'ec1 payment l'Jrice '. and otber di
closures re(lnirecl by Hegulfltiol1 Z of ",nid ,'\ct.

COl\PL,\IXT

Pursnant to the proyisions of the Truth in Lending Aet and the
ilnplementing rcgnbtion thel' nnder , :llt1 the Federal Trade Com-

mission Act , and by yirlu8 of the authority ycsted in it by said Acts
the Ferleral Trade Commissi()1 , IUl.ying reason to bel1eyc that Stewart.
Brothers &, \.hYard Compal1Y fl corporat.ion and 'Vnlter T, BrO\yn

Floyd F, Layman , IIe1en (,OII) Heitter

, '

and Hmmrd ,I'. Kraner

487-583 O-T3-
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indiyidnaUy and flS offcers of said corporation , hereinafter referred
to as respondents , have ,- joInted the provisions of said Acts and im-
plementing rcg111ation, and it appearing to the Commission that it
proceeding by it in respect thereof would be in the public interest
hereby issnes its complaint st.ating its charges in that respect as
fa lIows :

\RAGlL\PH 1. Hespondent Stewart Brothers & Ahyarc1 Company,
is a corporation organized , existing, and doing business under and
by virtue of the Jaws of the State of Ohio, with its principal offce

and place of business located at 21 ,Yest Church Street , Newark
Ohio.

Hespondents "'alter T. BrO\1'n , Floyd F. Layman , Helen (NMI)
Reitter, and IImrflrc1 ,v. Kraner are offcers of t118 corporate respond-
ent. They equally formllhlte, direct, and control the acts and prac-

tices of the corporate respondent., including the acts and practices

hereinafter set. forth. The addresses of the said offcers nxe : IV alter T.
Bro\\n 407 Springs Drive , Columbus, Ohio; Floyd F. La,yman , 201

Korth Columbus Street, Lamaster, Ohio: Helen (X II) Heittcr and

Howard ,V. 1(rane1' , the same as the corporate respondent.
m. 2. Respondents are 11mI' , and for some time Inst past , hllve

been engaged in the oftering for sale and sale of fnrnitllre and

appliances to the public at retail.
PAR. 3. In the onlinary course and conduct of their bllsine-ss ns

aforesaid , respondents ofte.r to extend and extend credit to natural
persons for personal, family or household pnrposes

, ,,-

hieh credit
pursnant to an agreement , is payable-in more than fOllr installments.
Hcspondents thereby extend " consumer c.redit."

\R. 4-. Snbseqllcllt to .July 1 , 19GD , respon(lents, in the ordinary

conrse of t.heir business as aroresal(l and ill connection with their
credit sa1es as "credit sale" is defined in Hegn1ation Z , have rauserl

and are causing their customers t.o execute Security Agree,nlents

hereinafter referred to as "the contrnet; ,yhich contain certain
consumer credit cost disclosnres. Hesponc1ents make no consumer
credit eost disclosures other than on the ('ontract.

By and through the use of the contract , respondent
(1) Fail to print the term "FIKA!"CE CHAHGE"' more con-

spicllously than othex terminology \yhe.re such term is require(l to be,
used, as required by Section 22G. 6(a) of Regulation 

(2) Fail to Inake full disclosures lJefore t.he transaction 15 con-

sml1mated and to fnrni311 the cnstorners '.ritll it duplicate of the



S'DEWART BROTHERS & ALWARD CO. , Err AL.

Complaint

inslnllnent or a stateme.nt by ''i' hich the required disclosures are made
as required by Sect.ion 226.8(a) of Regulation Z;

(3) Fail to clisc10se the amonnt of any oeld monthly payment, as
uired by Section 226.8(b) Pi) of Regulation Z;

(4) Fail to disclose the amount, or method of computing the
amount, of any clefanlt , deJinquency, or similar cha.rges payable in
the eyent of late payment, as required by Section 226.8 (b) (4) of
Hegulation Z;

(6) Fai! to employ the term "CASH DOWXPAYMENT" to
desc.ribe c101n1payment in money and to c1iscJose the amount of the
TOTAL DOWKPAYMK'IT " using that term , as required by

Section 226. 8(e) (2) of Regulation Z;

(0) F Lil t.o desc.ribe the dirlerence bct.s\een the cash priee a,nd the
total down payment as the "UNPAID BALA'ICE OF CASH
PRICE " as re nired by Section '226. 8 (e) (3) of RegnJation Z;

(7) Fai! to employ the term "A:\IOCNT FINANCED" to de-
scribe the baJnnce financed and to disclose snc.h amount , as required
by Section 22G.8(c) (7) of ReguJatioll Z:

(8) Fail to employ the term "DEFERRED PAY JENT PRICE"
to describe the smn of the cash price , all other charges which are
included in the amount fjnnl1ced but are 1101. a finllnet charge under
Section 226,4 of Reguhtion Z , and the 1.01.8.1 amount of the finanee
charge , if any, as reqnired hy Section '22(i. 8(e) (8) (ii) of Regn!a-
tion Z;

(9) Fail to make the clisclosnres to the extent "ppJieable as pre-
scribed un(ler Section 226. 8 -of Rel-,nlbtion Z , 'Y)1Cn an existing obliga-
tion is increased , as required by Section 226.8 (:i) of RehruJation Z.

\R, 5. Subseqnent to .July 1 , 1969 , re-spondents, in the ,ordinary
course of their business as aToresa.id and in connection with their
credit sales as "credit sale :' is defined in Regulation Z , have causecl

and are causing their eus1.omers to execute Promissory :\otes , here-
inafter referrcd to as "Kate :: which contain a confession of judg-
ment clause.

By and through the use of the note , respondents reta.in or will
retain or acquirc a security interest. in real property ,,,hich is used
or is expected to be used as the principa1 rcsidence of the customer

and , respondents:
(a) Fail to gi\ e notice of the cnstomel' s right to rescind the trans-

action by furnishing the customer ,,- ith t,yO c.opics of the notice in
the form as set 1'or1.h in Section 226.D(b) of Hegulation Z , a.s required
by Section 22G. D of Regulation Z.
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PAR. 6. Subsequent to July 1 , 1969 , respondents have caused aelver.
t.is8ments to be pnb1ishec1 , ,,,itl1in t.he meaning of Section 226. 10 of

egulation Z , which advertisements aid, promot-e, or assist. directly

or indirectly the e,xtcnsion of conSllmer credit. By and through the
use of these ac1vertisemeJlts, respondents state the amount of the
down payment required and that there is no charge for credit without
also stating: in terminology prescribed under See-tjoB 226. 8 of R.egu-
1ation Z , al1 of the fol1m,ing items, as required by Section 226. 10 (d)
(2) of Regulation Z:

(a) the rate of the finance charge expresse,d as an annual percent-

age rate;
(b) t.he number, amoun1 , and due dates or period of pa.yments

scheduled to repay the indebtedness if the c.redit is extended;
(c) the deferred payment price.
PAH. 7. Pursuant to Section 103 (q) of the Truth in Lending. Act

respondents aforesaid failnrcs to comply ,,,ith Regnlation Z consti-
tut.e violations of t.hat A.ct and pursuant to Section 108 tl1ereof
respondents have thereby \'iolated tlw Federal Trade Commission
Act.

DECISION AXD OnDER

The Federal Trade Commission having initiated an investigation
of certain acts and practices of the respondents named in the eaption
hereof, and the rc spondents having been fllrnished thereafter \dth
a copy of a draft of complaint ,vhich the Commission s staff proposed
to present. to the Commission for its conside.rntion a.nd \vhich , jf
issue,d by the Commission , would charge respondents ,vith violation
of the Federal Trade Commission -,Act; and

The respondents and counsel for the Commission having thereafter
executed an agreement containing a consent order. an admission by
the respondents of 0.11 the jurisdictional facts set fort.h in the afore-

said draft of complaint, a statement that thc signing of said agree-

ment is for settlement pnrposes only and does not constitute an
admission by respondents that the la,v has been violated as alleged
in sneh c.ornplaint , and ,yaivers and other provisions as required by
the Commission s rules; and

Tho Commission having therea,fter considered t.he matter and
having determined that it hculrcason to belicyc that the respondents
have violated the said Aet, and that c.omplaint should issue stating
its charges in that respect, and having thercupon accepted the
excc.uted consBut agreement and placed suc.h agreemcnt on the pub-
Jic record for a period of thirty (30) daYi: , now in further conform-
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ity with the procedure prescribed in Section 2.34(b) of its rules, the
Commission hereby issues its complaint, makes the following juris-
dictional findings , and enters the iol1mying order:

1. The respondent, Stewart Brothers & Alward Company, is a
corporation orga.nized , existing, and doing business under and by
virtue, of the law.s of the State of Ohio , with its principal offce and
place of business located at 21 ,Yest Church Street, Newark, Ohio,
The respondent ,Yalter T. Brown is the president , Floyd F. Layman
is the vice president , Helen (X lI) Reitter is the secretary, and
Ho\\ard V. Kraner is the treasurer-manager of the said corporation.
They equally formulate, direct, and control the policies, acts, and

practices of said corporation, and their business addresses are:
Walter T. Brmm , '107 Springs Drive , Columbus , Ohio; Floyd F.
LaynlOn , 201 'iorth Columbus Street , Lancaster, Ohio; Helen (NMI)
Reitter and ::HmyaTc1 ,V. 1C1'o.no1', same as that 'Of the said corporation.

2. The Federal Trade Commission has jurisdiction of the subject
Inntter of this proceel1ing Hnd of the respondents , and the proceeding

is in the public interest.
ORDER

It i8 ordemd That respondents Stewart Brothers & Alward Com-
pany, a cOl'poration and it.s ofIcers, and ,Valt.er T. B1'01yn , Floyd F.
Layman , Helen ( MI) Reitter , and Howard IV. Kraner , individu-
ally and as oflicers of said corporation and respondents' agents

represcntatiycs, and ernployecs, directly or through any corporate

or other device , ill eonnection with any extension of consumer credit
or any advertisement to aid , promote, or assist directly or indirectly,
ny extension of conSlUner credit , as ';consumer credit and "adver-

tisement" are defined jn Regnlation Z (12 CFR 8226) of the Truth in
Lending Act (Pnb.L. 90-321 , 15 CS. C. 1601 et 8eq.

), 

do forthwith
cease and desist from:

(1) Failing to print the term " ANCE CHARGE" more
conspicuously than otheT terminology where such term is
required to be lIsed, as required by Section 226.6 (a) of

ReguJation Z;
(2. ) Failing to make full disclosures before the transaction is

consummated and to furnish the customers -with a duplieate of

the instrument or a statement uy which the required disclosures

are nmde, as reqnired by Sect ion 226.8 (a) of Regulation Z;
(3) I' ailing to disclose the amount of any odd rnonthly pay-

ment , as required by Section 226, 8(b) (3) of Regulation Z;
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(4) Failing Lo clisc.ose the amount, or method of computing
the amount , of any default, delinquency, or similar charges pay-
able in the event of late payments, as required by Section
226. 8 (b) (4) of Regulation Z;

(r,) Failing to employ the term "CASH DOWNPAY:lIE:-T"
to describe any c10Tfnpnymcnt in moncy and to c1isc.OSB the amonnt
of the "TOTAL DO,Y1\PA Y:lIE " C'T, using that term , as re-
qnired by Section 226.8(c) (2) of Regulation Z;

(6) Failing to employ tbe. term "U1\PAID BALANCE OF
CASH PRICE" to describe tI,e difference bet"een the cash price
and total dO""lpao.ment. as reqnired by Section 226. 8(e) (8) of
Regnlation Z;

(7) Failing to employ the term ;' A:\10UNT FINANCED"
to c1cscrib the babnce linanced and to disclose such amount, as
reqnired by Section 22G. 8(c) (7) of Reg11lation Z;

(8) Failing to employ tbe term "DEFERRED PAYME
PRICE': to c1csc.ribc the sum 01' t11e cash price, all other charges
which are included in the, amount financed hut arc not a iinancc
charge 111l(1er Section 22G.4 of Hcgulation Z j and the total amount
of the finance charge , if any, as reqnired by Section 226.8(c) (8)
(ii) of Regulation 

(9) Failing to make the disclosures to the extent applicable
as prescribed under Section 22G. 8 of Regnlntioll Z , when an
existing ob1igation is increased , n.s required by Section 2.2G.8(j)
01' .Regulat.ion Z;

(10) Failing 1.0 give notice of right to rescind in credit trans-
fictions ill\yhich a se.curityinterest is or ,yill be retained 01'
acquired in allY reaJ propert.y ,yhich is used or is expected to
be used as the principal residel1ce of the cnstomer by furnishing
hyo copies of snch Dotic( in the 10rm as set forth in Section
2:2G.9(b) of Regulation Z, as rcquircd by Section 22G.9 of
Hegubtion .1;

(11) Stating ill aclYCli:ising the amount. of t.he dOlynpayment
required or1hat no dmn1paymellt is required

, t)JC amount of 

installment pflyment, the dollar amount of any finance charge
the lllUl1ber of instflllmE'l1ts or lhe. period of repflyment , or that
t.here is no cJwrge for credit, without lat:ing nJl oJ the foJlo\l'
ing items in termillology pre Clibecll1nc1er S rtjon 226.8 of Regu-
btion Z , as rcqnirec1 by Section 226. 1O(cl) (2) of Reg-ubbon 

(i) The rash price.
(ii) The amount of the clO\nlpu)'rnent required or t.hat

110 c1owllpa nwnt is rCfplin:c1. as app1icable.
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(iii) The number , amount and due dates or period of pay-
ments scheduled to repay the indebtedness if the credit 
extended.

(iv) The a.nount of the finance charge expressed a.s an
annual percentage rate.

(v) The deferred payment price.
(12) Failing, in any consumer credit transaction or advertise

mCl1t, to makc an disclosures, determined in accordance with
Sections 226.4 and 2:2G. ;3 of Regulation Z , in the manncr, form
and anlOunt required by Sections 226. , 226. , 226. , 226. , and
226. 10 of Regulation 

It is fUT/h(? oiY/ered That respomlcnis deJiwr a copy of this order
to cease and desist. to all present Hnd futnre personne.1 of respondents
engaged in f.be consummation of fmy extension 01 consumer credit
or in any aspeet of prcparation , creation , or placing of adycrtising,

and that rcsponclcnts secure a. signeel stn.tement: acknowledging receipt
of said order from each such pe1'son.

It i8 fndheT m;del'erl Thnt respondents notify the Commission at
least thirty (;30) days prior to finy proposed change in the corporate
respondent , such as dissolution , assignment , or sale resllltjng in the
emergence 01 a, su('cc;ssor corporation , t.he. creation or dissolution of
subsicljaries or any ot.her ehanp:e in the corporation '.yhich may affect
compliance obl.igat1ons arising out of the order.

It is- /,Ul'thCi' onle'ler( That the respondents here.in shaD , within
sixty (60) days after service upon them of this order, fie with the
Commission a report in Iyritinp:, setting forth in detail the manner
and form in which they han; complied '.yith the orde.r to cense find
(le8is1" contained herein.

It i8 further ordered, That the respondents herein :-hall

, -

within
sixty (GO)' clays niter service npon them of this order, file Iyjth the
Commission n. report in '.\Tiring, etting forth in detail the manner
and form in Iyhi('h they have complie.d with this order,

IN TUE :JLi.TTER OF

GARR1S0N PRINTING DIYISIOJ\ , INC. , ET AL
CQXSEXT ORDER : .ETC., IN REG. \HD TO Tl-JI:. "\LLEGED YlOJ,;\TIOX OF THE

FEDEIL\L TR"\j)E CQilBDSSlOX ACT

Docket C-212.

:;.

COilpla.int . JUJI. 3, J.9/2-Dccisilm, ,Jan. 3. 19"/2

rOJli'ent orc1cl' requiring Hennington . Yt. , ,y)wlesnl('rs :Jml retni!cl"'" of gl". ting
cnnls to (,f'f!se pn'Uckf'ting tJwir melTlwmlise or furnishing otlwrs the :11efil"
to mislead Imrch1!Sf'l'S as to I- be price." of resIJOlldenls ' Ill'ullnds.
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CO:MPLADrl'

Pursuant to the provisions of the Federal Trade Commission Act
and by virtuG of the authority vested in it by said Act the Federal
Trade Commission , having reflson to lwJi6l-e that Garrison Printing
Division , Inc. , a corporation , and Carrie \Y. Garrison, inc1ivic1ually

and as an offcer of said corporation , hereinafter referred to as
respondents , ha.ve violate(l the proyisions of said A- , and it appear-
ing to the COl1rnission that a proceeding by it in respect thereof

,,-

ould be in the public. interest , hereby issues its complaint stating
its charges in that respect as follows;

\RcU::Al'H 1. Respondent Garrison Printing Di \'18ion , Inc. , is a
corporation organized , existing flnd doing business under any by
virtue of the laws of the State of Xew York with its principal offce
and place of business located at ,Yater StreeJ , Bennington , Vermont.

Hespondent Carrie ,V. Garrison is an inc1ivichwl and offcer of the
corporate respondent and participates in formulation of the polieie.s
acts and pnlctices of the corporate respondent including the acts and
practices here.inafter set forth. Her address is the same as that of
the corporate respondent.

P..AR. 2. Respondents are no"\Y, and for some time last past have
been , engaged in the offering for sale , sale and distribut.ion to "\dlOle-
srLlers und retailers of ,greeting c.ards for resflle to the purchasing
public.

P..\R. 3. In the course and conduct of their business as aforesaid
respondents nOlY cause , and for some time last past haye caw:cd , their
products, when 501(1 , to be shipped from their place of business in the
Stat.e of Xe\y York to purchasers thereof locatedinvariolls oiher
States of the lTnitecl States and in the District of Columbia.
Respondents maintain find flt all times mentioned herein han: majn-
1 ,lined, a substantial course of trnde in said products in COlnrneree

flS '; comlTerce is defined in the Federal Trade, Commission Act.
\R. tJ- 1n the course and condncl of their aforesaid bl1siness and

ata1l time,s mentioned herein respondents l1aye been , nnd nmy fire
ill substantial competition ill commerce \yitll corporntions , iirms and
inc1il'iduals engaged in the sale of products of the same p:enern1 kind
and nature as those sold by respondents.

\H. 3. Hespondents , for nle purpose of illclllcing the Plirc.hase of
their prod1!ds haye engaged in tlw practice of w:iing fictitious prices
in connection theTe"\yith by the foJlOlying. method and means :

By distributing, or cHusing to be (listribllted, to retailers , certain
of re,spondents : Christmas cards ill consumer pack lges llpon "\Yhi('h
are clearly and conspicuously printed prices.
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In the manner aforesaid, respondents thereby represent. directly

or indircc1tly, that t.he amounts shown are respondents ' bona fide
estimate of the ariual retail prires of said products in respondents

trrlde area and that they do not appreciably exceed the highest prices
at which substantial sales of said products are made at retail in said
trade area..

In trut.h and in faet said arnounts shown are not respondents ' bona

fide estimate of the actual ret.ail prices of said products in respond-
ents' trade area awl they appreciably exceed the, highest prices at
'yhich substantial sales of said products rlre made at retail in said

trade area.

Therefore, the stntements and representations set forth above aTe
false , misleading and deceptlve.

PAR. 6. By the aforesaid acts and pract.ices , respondents place in
the hands of ret.ailers the means all(l instnmJentalities by and through
which they may mislead the public as to the uSllal and regular retail
price of said products.

m. 7. The use by respondents of the aforesaid false , misleading
and decepti ve statements , representations , acts and practices has had
an(l nmy has, the capacity and tendency to mislead and deceiye the
purchasing public into the erroneous and rnistaken belief that said
statements and representations 'yere and are true and into the pur-

chase of substant.ial quantities of respondents ' merchandise by reason
of said erroneous and mistaken belieL

PAIL 8. The aforesaid acts and practices of respondents , ashere-in
nlleged , 'yere and arc al1 to the prejudice and injury 01 the public
and of respondents cOlnpetitors and constit.uted , and now constitute
unfair methods of competition in C01l11181'Ce anclunfair and deceptive

acts and practices in commerce in yiolation of Section;) of the Fed-
eral Trade Commission Ad.

DEClSlOX A:'1) ORDER

The. Federal Trade Cornmission having initiated an investigation
of certain acts and practices of the respondents named in the caption
hereof, and the respondents hn'l'ing been furnished thereafter with
a copy of a draft of complaint. 'yhi('h the Bureau of Consumer Pro-
tection proposerl to present to 1 he COlTlinission for its consideration
l1d whidL if issued by the Commission, would charge respondents

'yith violat.ion of 11w, Fe(lpj' J Trade Commission Act; and
The respondents and (',ollllsel for the Commission haying there-

after executed all agrcement containing a. consent order, a,n fl,dmiss-ion

by t.he respondents of all the jlll'isdictional facts set forth in the
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aforesaid draft of complnint, fl. statement that the signing of sa,ic1

agreement is for settlement purposes only and does not c.onstitute
an admission by respondents that the b,y has been violated as a1leged
in sneh complaint , and waiye.rs and other provisions as requ irec1 by
the Commission s rules; ancl

The Commission l1rn ing thereafter considered the matter and
haying cletcl'ndnec1 tlwt it had reason to be1ieve that the respondents
ha\' B violated the saiel J\ct, find that complnint shonlclissue stating
its charges in that.- respect , and having thereupon accepted the
executed COl1fenl agreement and placed such agreement on the public
record for a pe.rjod of thirty (30) days , now in further conformity
with the procedure prescrilJd in Section 2.14(b) of its rules, the
Commission hereby issnes its complaint , makes the follo'lying juris-
dictional findings , find enters the rollowing order:

L Respondent. Garrison Printing Division : Inc, , is a corporation

orgnnizr,c1. existing a.nd doing business under and by virtue oJ the
laws of the St,ate of New York, with its principal ofHce and ph,

of business located nt. ,Va, jeT Street, Be,nnington , Vermont.
Respondent Carrie ,Y. Garrison is a.n individual and a.n officer of

said corporation and participates in the formulation of the policies
acts and practices of the, corporate respondent. including the acts and
practices lmder in"lTstigation. 1101' address is the same flS thGt of tl1c

corporatc respondent.

2. The Federal Trade Commission has jurisdiction of tJle subject
matter of this proceeding ancl of the respondents , and the proceeding
is in the public interest.

OIlDEH

It is O''Clf./' ed. That respollclents Garrison Printing Division Inc.
n, c.orpol'ation and its omcers nnd Carrie ,V. Garrison, indi"ddually
and as an oifcel' of snid corporation , and respondents : agents , repre-
sentatives and employees , directJy 01' through any corporate or ot.her
clevie€', in connection "with the a(hertising, offering lor snl(' sale or
clistril.mtioH of greeting cards or any other pl'odllct in commerce., as

eonllnerce is defined in thE', Fedcnl1 Trade Commission Ac.
forth\yith eense and desist from:

1. Disseminating OJ' c1istl'il-mting any purported retail seIJing
price for respondents : nWl'chandise or preticketing respondents

merchandise with snell price amount unless (a) it is rcsp011dents
bona fid( estimate of thl\ actnal retail price of the prochlct in
the al'' fl when, rcspondents do business and (b) it cloes not
appreciably exceNl the J1ighef3t price at ,yhich snbstantiaJ sales

of said pl'oclnet arc made ill 2aid trade area.
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2. l\Iisrepresenting, in any manner, the prIe8S at which re-
spondents ' merchandise is sold at retail.

3. Furnishing to otl1el's any means 01' instrumentalities
",hereby the purchasing public may be misled 01' deceived as
to the retail prices of respondents : products.

It i.s further onler'6rl That respondent corporn:tion shall forthwith
clistribnte a copy of this order to each of its operating divisions.

It i8 fw,ther ol'deTed. That. the respondents herein shall , within
sixty (GO) days after sen- ire upon them of this order file "with the
COJTnnission a report in writing selt.ing forth in detail the manner
a.nd form in Iyhich they have ( oJnp1iccl vdth t.his order.

I X THE 3:L\ TTEn OF

EKGLISH CARDS , LTD. , ET AL

SE:\TT ORDER , ETC., IX REGARD TO THE .\LLEGF.D VIOLJ.TION OF TIlE
FEDERJ..L TJL\DE C01DLISSrox c\.CT

Docket ('- .'126'. Cump/rI;nf. Jail. UJ",2-Dccision

, .

Jan. 3, lDi2

C()n l'Jltordl'l' H'fj11iring' Xl'\\ York ('it \' wl olesnlcrs ,me! retailers of greeting

flnh to CP!1f.C rln"ti('ketim tbrir meJ'C"hnndisf' Dr furni hing ot11ers the
means to mislefH! IJ1l'ehns(O)' \.; 10 the llriecs of rrspol!lr.nts ' products.

COJfPLAIKT

PurSll,-lnt to the provisions of the Federal Trade Commission Act
and by virtue of the. authority vcstc(l in it by Stticl Act , the Federal
Trade Commission , haTing reason to believe thnt English Cards Ltd.
it corpol'tltion , and Irving Epstein , also kuO\n1 HS Irving .E,-ans, incE-
vidually and as an otlice.r oJ said corpol'fltioll , hereinaiter referred to
as respondents , hn ,"e. \-iohtccl the pro\-isions of said Act, and it
appeariJlg' to tl18 Commi53ion that. it proceeding by it in respect
111ereof would be in the public interest , hereby issues its complaint
stating its charges ill that n;spect ioJlm-n

PAR;\;r \PH 1. Respondent English Cards, Ltd.. is a corporation
organized , existing and cloing' bl!sjnt's under and by vjrtue of the
JaIl'S 01 the St,lte of ::cw York 1yith its principal olTic.8 and place
or business located ,It 230 Fifth AY81l11e , Xe,,, York , J\Tew York.

p()nc1ent In-ing Epstein , ,dso l nown as Irving Evans, is an
incli,' idllal Ilnrl 01liC81' of tlJP. corporate l'espomlenL Be formulates
din' ,-'ts and controls the nets and practices of the corporate responcl-
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ent including the acts and practices hereinafter set fort.h. IIis address
is the same as tllft of the corporate respondent.

PAR. 2. Respondents are now, and for some time last pflst have
been , engaged in the offering for salc , sale and distribution to whole-
salers and retailers of greeting cards for resale, to the purchasing
public.

PAR. 3. In the course and condnrt of their business as aforesaid
respondents now canse, and for some time last past have caused
their products , when sold , to be shipped from their place of business
in the State of X cw York to purchasers thereof located in various
other states of the united States and in the District of Columbia.
R.espondents maintain and at a11 times mentioned herein have main-
tained , a. substantial coursc of trade in sa.id products in commerce! as

eommcl'ce '! is defined in the Federal Trade Commission Act.
PAIL 4. In the course and conduct of their aforesaid business, and

at all times mentioned herein respondents haTe been. and now are
in substantial competition in COllmerce 1yith corporations , firms and
individuals engaged in the. sale of products of the same general kind
and nature as those sold by respondents.

PAR. 5. Respondents , for the purpose of inducing the purchasc of
their prorlncts , have engaged in the pradice of using fictitious prices
in connection th81'e1yith by the folhnring method and means:

By distributing, or cau:sing to be distributed, to retailers, certain
of respondents: Christnuls cards in consumer pa('kages npon which
arB dearly nncl conspicllollsly printed prices.

In the manner aforesaid , responcll:nts thereby represent dircctly or
indired1y, that the aJIlOunts shown are respondents ' bona fide Bsti-
mate of the nctuH I retail prices of sa.id products in respondents
trade area and that they do not npprcc.iably exccr.d the highest prices
at whieh substantial sales of sfLicl products are made at reta.il in said
trade area.

In truth and in fact said anlOunts shO\ni are not respondents ' bona
fide estilnate of the actual retail pri('e.s of said products in respond-
ents ' trade area and they aIJpreciably exceed the highest prices at
which substantial sales of said pro(111cts are mR.dc at retail in said
trade area.

Therefore, the statements and representations :set forth abovc are
false , misleading and c1ecepti Ye.

PAR. 6. By the aforesaid acts and practices , respondents plA.ce in
the hands of retailers the menns and inslrnmentrtlities by and through
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which they may mislead the public as to the usual and regular retail
price of said produots.

PAR. 7. The use by respondents of the aforesaid false, misleading
and decepti Ire statements , represent-ntions, acts and practices has had
and now has , the capacity and tendency to mislead and deceive the
purchasing public into the erroneous and mistaken belief that said
statements and representations \\ere and are true and into the pur-

chase of sllbstantia1 quant.ities of respondents ' merchandise by reason
of said erroneous and mlstaken he1ief.

PAH. 8. The aforesaid acts and praotices of respondents, as herein
alleged , were and are a1l to the prejudice and injury of the public

and of respondents ' competitors and constituted , and now constitute
unfair methods of competition in commerce and unfair and deceptive
acts and practices in commerce in violation of Section 5 of the Fed-
end Trade Commission Act.

DEClSlOX x 'm ORDER

The Federal Trade Commission having initiated an investigation
of certain acts and practic,s of the respondents named in the caption
hereof , and the respondents having been fUl11ished thereafter \vith
a copy of a draft of complaint which the Bureau of Consumer Pro-
tection proposed to present to the Commission for its consideration
and which , if issued by the Commission , wOllld charge respondents
with violation of the Federal Trade Commission Act; and

The respondents and counsel for the Commission having thereafter
executed an agreement cont tinjng a consent Qrder, an a.dmission b;y
the respondents of all the jurisdictional facts set forth in the afore-
said draft of complaint, a statement that the signing of said agree-

ment is for settlerncnt purposes only and does not constitute an
admission by respondents that the law has been violated as alleged
in sHch complaint , and waivers and other provisions as required by
the ComJlissjon s ruJes; and

The Commission having thereafter considered the matter and
having determined that. it lHtd reason to bc1ieve that the respondents

lVC violated the saiel Act , and that compJaint should jssue stating
its charges in that respect , and having thereupon accepted the exe-
cuted c.onsent agreement and placed such agreement on the pllbJic
record for a period of thirty (30) days , now in further conformity
\\'i1.h the procec1nre prescribed in Sec.tioll 2.14(b) of its rules, the
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Commission hereby issues it.s complaint, makes the fol1owing juris
dictional findings, and e,nters the follO\\ing ordBT:

1. Respondent. English CflTds, Lt.d. , is fl. corporation organized
existing and doing busine,ss under nnd by virtue of the la-ws of the
St.ate of Nc'iY York , with its principal offce nnc1 place of business

located at. 230 Fifth Avenue, New York , Ne'i\ York.
Respondent Irying Epstein , also known as Irving Evans, is an

inc1iyic1ual and an ofIccr of sa.id corporation. He formulates , directs
and controls the policies , acts and practices of the proposed c.orporate
respondent , including the acts and practices unde,I' investigation. His
ac1c1rcssis the Brune as that of 1he corporate respondent.

2. The _Federal Trade Commission has jurisdiction of the subject
matter of this proceeding and of the respondents, and the proceed-

ing is in the public interest.
ORDER

1 t is oTdeTed That respondents Engli$h Cards , Ltd. , a corporation
and its offIcers , and In-ing Epstein , also kllcnnl as Incing Evans
individually and as all offccr of s,l1d corporation, and respondents
agents , representati'iTes and employees : directly or through any corpo-
ratc or other (le\-ice, in c.ollnec,tion \\"ith the advertising, offering
for sale, sale or cl1striLmtion of greeting cards, in commercc, as
commerce ': is (lefinec1 in the Fcderal Tradc Commission Act, do

forthwith cease flnd dcsist from:
1. Disseminating or distributing any purported retail selling

price for respondents ' rnerchanclise or prE'Jicketing respondents
meTchandise \\"itb suell price amount unless (fl) it is respond-
ents ' h011ri lide estimate of the nctllfll retail price of the product
in the arefl \\' 11e1'c 1'cspo11(lent:- do husiness and (b) it. does not
appreciably exceed t11e highest price at which subst.antial sales
of said proc111rt Hl'C J111clc ill said trade area.

2. j\iisre.presenting in fl1)' manner the prices at whieh re-
spondents merc1wndise is sold at retajl.
H. Furnishing to others any means OJ' instnnnenta1ities

whereby the purchasing pub1ic 11aY be misled or deceived
flS to the retflil prices of respo1lc1e,nts products.

J t is fUTt/WI' (Hrlered That respon(lcnt corpo1'a.tion shall forthwith
distributc fl copy of this orc1e,r to each of its Opel'fltillg divisions.

It is further ordercd That the respondents herein shall , within

sixt.y (60) d ys fjel' sonice upon the11 of this order file with t.he
Commission fl report in writing setting forth in detail the manner
and form in which they have compliecl\vith this order.
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IN THE J\Lc\TTl':U OF

n P & L, ING, ET AL.

CONSENT ORDl' ETC. , IN HEGAHD TO TIlE ALLEGED VIOLATION OF THE

FEDEI AL TRADE COMMISSION AND THE TRUTH IN LE DING ACTS

!Jocket C 2127. Complaint, Jan. 4, 1972-lJecision, Jan. .1, 1972

Consent order requiring a SL Loui::, 1\'10., school for professional models to
cease failng to di::close that the purpose of its advertising is to induce the
enrollment of students, misrepresenting that it is an airJine company or a
job placement service, that its enrollees are assured employment, that the
school \vil make job interview appointments, failng to provide a Notice

of the right of students to rescind contracts within three days , and failng
to make othev disclosures as to the obligations of the school. Respondents
are also 'retluired to cease violating the Truth in Lending Act by failng
to use in their contracts the language required by Regulation 7. nf said
Act.

COMPLAIN'

Pursuant to the provisions of the Fooeral Trade Commission Act
and the Truth in Lending Act, aud the implementing regulation
promulgated thereunder, and by virtue of the authority vested in jt
by said Acts, the Federal Trade Commission, having reason to

believe that H P & L, Inc. , a corporation , and Ray Quinlan , indi-
vidually and as an offcer of said corporation , hereinafiter referred to
as respondents , have violated the provisjons of said Aets, and it
appearing to t.he Commissjon that a pl"oceeding by it in respect
thereof would be in the public interest, hereby issues its eomplaint
stating its charges in that respect as foJJows:

PARAGRAl H 1. Hespondent l P & L, Inc. , is a corporation , orga-

nized , existing and doing business under and by virtue of the laws
of the State of Missouri , with its principal offce and place of busi-
ness locleted at 306 North Grand Boulevard , St. Louis, Missouri.

PAH. 2. Respondent Ray Quinlan is an individual and offcer of
the said corporation, with hjs principal offce and place of business

located let 14753 Vcntum Boulevard , Sherman Oaks, California. He
formulates, directs and controls the acts and practices of the corpo-
rate respondent , induding- Lhe acts and practices hereina.fter set
forth.

PAR. 3. Respondents are now, and for some tjme last past have

been , engaged in Hle a.dvertising, otTering for sale and sale of various
courses of instruction, and in the operation of schools , either directly
or indirectly, wherein courses of instruction are offered tD those
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seeking employment as professional models, fashion advisers and
coordinators, airline stewardesses , and in various other fields, and
in the operation of modeling a/,'1ncies for the purpose of placing
graduates of their schools, and others, in various jobs relating to

professional modeling.
COUN'l' I

Alleging violation of Section 5 of the Federal Trade Commission
Aot, the allegations of Paragraphs One, Two and Three above are
incorpomted by mference in Count I as if fully set fort verbatim.

PAR. 4. Respondents operate a school of modeling instruction
known as Pat Quinlan Modeling and Finishing School in St. Louis
Missouri, located at 306 North Grand Boulevard. Respondents ' school
representatives solicit prospective students from the States of Mis-
souri and Illinois by means of advertisements in various St. Louis
Missouri, newspapers, which have an interstate circulation, by tele-

vision advertising on a station which is viewed in ,the State of
Missouri and Il1inois, and, in some instances, by telephone calls to
prospective students in the States of Missouri and Illinois. In addi-
tion, ,vrittBn communications, advertising bills, checks, letters and
other wriHen instruments have been sent and have been received
between the individual respondent, Ray Quinlan, at his principal
place of business located in California, as aforesaid, and the said

school located in St. Louis, Missouri. The individual respondent

travels between his principal place of business located in California
and the aforesaid school , located in Missouri , on a frequent and regu-
lar basis for the purpose of directing, controlling and formulating
policif'/ s for t.he said sehaol in Missouri.

PAIt. 5. By virtue of the aforesaid acts and practices, respondents
maintain , and at all times mentioned herein have maintained, a sub-
stantial course of trade in said Inodeling instruction courses in com-

merce, as "commerce" is d5fined in the Federal Trade Commission
Act.

PAn. 6. In the course and conduct of their busines as aforesaid
and for the purpose of inducing persons to sign contracts for
respondents ' courses of instruetion , respondents ' representatives have
made and are IIa-king numerous statements a.nd representations , con-
cerning said COurses of instruction, through oral statements made

to prospective st.udents by their employees , reprp..cntatives, and sa-les-
Incn, through telephone solicitation calls, and through television and
newspaper adverti ing, with l'e.spect to the nature of respondents
offer, their Courses of instruction , employment opportunities for
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st\ldents an!l grad\lat.es, iJnd exp cted earning potential for students

and graduates of theil'afores .id school.
Typica1 and ilustrative of respondents ' printed advertising rep-

resentations, bnt not a11 inclusive thereof, are the fo11owing:

HELP WTD-FE:\1AJ FALL PROMOTION

Fall promotional style show to be presented to insurance executives wives.

Must be between 20 and O. (sic) For interview call 652-4666 9 to 9 daily,

HELP WTl) FEMALE-YOUNG LADIES

AI'€- needed now for part time work during school year in shopping plaza.
ll'ust be able to coordinate fashions. Call OL 2-4667 or OL 2-5R76.

HELP "TTD-FEMALIjJ-GIRLS-FLY

or St. Louis private airlme. ' Excellent opportunity. Ages 17. to. 28. Call for
interview, 6.52--665.

HELP . WTD :b'El\ALE- ATTRAC' eIVE G IltL

As f!Fhion assistant to caordinatol . Must have flair- for- fashion. Interesting
ppsition; .needed immediately. Cap Miss Andcl'son 652-665.

"PAl'. 7. By and thr01)gh the use of the aforesaid statements and
representations, and others of similar import and meaning, but not
expressly set out herein, respondents hflve represented, directly or
by implication , that:

1. A bona fide offer of emp10yment is m"de through respondents
Rd vertisernents.

2. R.e,c;pondents ' primary business is that of an airline company or
job placement service.

;3. Graduates of respondent.s ' school of instruction will be qualified
-for employment as airline stC\va.rdesses and ground hostess€'JS, pro-
fessional models, fashion coordinators, mRke-up and grooming coun-
selors, or for employment. in various other jobs related to careers
in professional modeling.

4. P\"xsons enrolling in rE'hspondents ' school , who require temporary
employment to defray their expenses while attending the courses
are. assnrE'!cl of employment sufficient for that purpose.

5. .Job interview appointments will be made by respondents ' school
representatives for students and graduates with airlines, department
storcs and other business orga-niJ;ations which have jndicated 
interest in hiring personnel trained by respondents ' school.

6. In some instances, students are signing document.s other t.han

a contract, during their initial interview with respondents' school
representatives, at which tjme said contracts are executed.

487- 883-
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7. Prospective students and students are assured the return of

their investment in the price of the modeling courses of instruction
taken through jobs obtained for them by respondents ' school repre-
sentatives either during training, or ' immediately upon grduation.

PAll. 8. In truth and in fact:
1. A bona fide olIer of employment is not made through the

respondents' advertisements, but' instead, such advertisements are

placed tor the purpose of obtaining leads as to persons who may be
interested in purchasing respondents ' courses 01 inst.ruction.
2. Hespondents' primary business is not that of an airline com-

pany, nor a job plar.-ment service, but , rather, respondents' primary
business is that of operating a school of modeling instruetion, asaforesaid. 

3. Hespondents' va,rious courses of instruction do not qualify
graduates thereof for p,rnploymel1t as airline stewardesse and gronnd
hoste'3ses , professional Illodels, fashion coordinators, make-up and
grooming counselors , or for other jobs related to careers in modeling.

4. H spondents ' reprrBentatives seldom attempt to obtain employ-
ment for stndents to defray their expenses while attending respond-

ents' training ooursp '3 after the student has executed a contract and
enrolled in said courses. In a few instances , in which jobs have been
btained for student,

, "

wa.ges have been lrIuch Im,vcr than the students
were originally led to believe by respondents' representaLives , and
in some cases , students h;1\"c not been able, to collect wages owed to
them by respondents ' school faT \York performed.

5. .Job interview appointments are seldom made by respondent.s
selloul l'epre,sentatjycs for students and graduates with airlines
department stores or other business organizations. In fact, very few
department stores or other business organi1.ations have indicated
any interest in hiring grad nates of respondents ' school , and in tho
fe\v cases \\'here respondtmt.s ' rcpre.entatives have made job inter-
vie\v appointments , on behalf of the sehool's students a.nd graduates
such appointments \vere seeured only afte,r insistent demands were
made on respondents ' representatives by the students and graduates
that the appointments be secured. In most instances, even when job
intervie,w appointments are made for students and graduates by
respondents ' representatives , the employment offered , if any, and the
remuncnltion arc not of the l1flt.ure and Iiffount said students and
graduat '3 ha.ve hCEm led toexpelt by respondents ' repre.cnta, tives.

G. In SOHle instances stmlents execute contracts with respondents

school 1-0 enroll in and PflY for training courses , when they sign what
they lm:ieve tube receipts for dO\ynpaymcnt money, or other written
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docurmmts, purported tD be other than contracts by respondents
representatives.

7. Students of the respondents' school seldom receive a return of

their investment, in the price of the training conrses taken , through
johs ohta,ined for them hy respondents ' school representatives , either
during such tra-ining or after graduation. In fact, few, if any, jobS:

are ohta,ined for the school's students and gmduates hy respondents'
represcntwtives. In the few instances where respondents' school has
provided johs fo,r its own students , wages have been too low to a,!low
a return of the student's invesbncnt in the training courses within

a reasonable period of time.

Therefore, the statements and representations set forth and re"
ferred to hereinabove arc fa1se misleading, and de'cepti VB.

PAn. g. In the course and conduct of their aforesaid business

respondents, through their representatives and emp1oyees, have used
various unfair tnd deceptive techniques and practices as a Ineansof
selling initial or supplemental wurses of instrurA;ion in mo eling.
Typical and ilustrative, hut not all incJusive, of such techniques

and practices are the following:
1. -Respondents ' representatives and employees represent to stu-

dents or prospective students , tlutt upon completion of a. given course
of instruction , the student will have achieved a specific sta-ndaTd of
proficiency; where-as , in fact, before the given course of instruction
is completed and hefore the specified standard of proficiency has been
achieved , the prospect or student is subjeeted to further cOfwcive sales
eIroris toward the purchase of additional courses of instrU( tion.

2. Respondents' representatives ancl ernployce-s use intense, emo-
tional and unrelenting sales pressure to persuade a prospective stu-

dent or studont t.o execute a contra.ct ohligating such persn to pay
for a substa.ntial number of hours of modeling or other instrucUon at
substantial cost , without rdfording such ptn.soll it reasonable oppor-
tunity to cOllsid(w and comprehend the scope and extent of the con-
traetnaJ obUgatiol1s involv d. Such contracts often provide for more
than forty (40) hours of modeling instruction with a cost to the
prospect or student from $200 to 'Over $500 , depending upon the
type of courses taken, and such person is insistently urged, cajoled

and coerced to sign such it contract hurriedly and precipitately
and through the nse of persistent and emotionally forcdul sales
prcsen ta.tions.

3. llespondents ' representa,tives and employees represent to pro-
spective students and students that they are assured employment in
spef ific jnteI'\sting and lucrative johs as professional models , air1ine
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stewardesses, fashion coordinators and in other high-paying posi-
tions, contingent upon such prospect':; 01' student' s willingnBss to
execute a contract agreeing to take certain of the modeljng courses

offered by re;;polldents ' school. Such prospects and students often
discover, during or aftr completion of the courses they have agreed
to take, that the specific employment assured them by respondents
repI' EmLatives and employees , \vhich originally induced them to
execute contracts, is not, 'in fact , available. 'Vhen said prospects or
:students cQmplain to r ndent8' representatives and en1ployees
regarding this matter, other hltere."ting and luerative employment
is as.qurcd as a substitute for the original employment prom i'sed

caPri att mpt, ar oftpr) made to induce such prospoots aud students
io execute contracts agreeing to enroll in and pay for udditioual

modeling courses, purportedly qualifying them for the substitute
employment.

1. Respondents' represer,tatives and employee induce prospeotiv
students and students to execute contracts , agreeing to enroll in an
'pay for certaiu of the modeling courses offered by respondents

school, through representations that, graduates of the said school are
in great demand by airline companies , dBpartment. stores and ,other
business organizations , and can be assured of high-paying jobs as
mrline stmvardesses , professinnal models, and in other related fields.
Sorne prospective students and studm1ts have been guaranteed jobs
by respondents ' representatives with starting saJar1.p.. of as much as
$200 per week and $20 per hour. In fad, after executing said con-

tracts, prospective students and stndents eome to realize that the
guantnteed jobs and salaries are not available as promised.

Therefore, these statements, representations and practices as heTe
inabove set forth were and are unfair and deceptive.

PAIt. 10. In the conduct of their business, at all times mentioned
herein , respondents have been in l:ubstantial competition, in com-

merce, with corporations , firms and individuals in the sale of courses
01 the same general kind and nature us those sold by respondents.

PAR. 11. The use by respondents of the aforesaid false, misleading
and deceptive statements , n presenta.tions and practices has had, ilud
now has, the capacity and tendency to mislead Incmbers of the pur-
chasing public into the erroneous and mistaken belief that said state-
ments and representations were and are true, and into the purchase
of substantial quantities of respondents' courses of instruction by

reason of said erroneous and mistaken belief.
PAn. 12. The, aforesaid acts and practices of respondents , as herein

alleged, were and are all to the prejudice and injury of the public
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documents , pnrpol'tf'll to be. other than contracts by l'esponrlents
represelltat.iYe

7. Stllc1ents of th(' respollclents school seldom receiye ft retnrn of
their investnlEmt, in the price 01' the training courses taken , through
jobs obtained for them by respondents ' school represcntntives , either
during snch training 01' after graduation. In fact , few, if any, jobs

1'0 obtained lo:r the school's students and graduates by respondents
representatiyes. In the :fe,\, instances ,yhere respondents ' school has
pI' m-ided jobs for its OIYl1 students, wages haye been too low to allow
,l re.turn aT the stuclent"s inn:stmcnt. in the training courscs 1\ ithin
It l'f'rlsona bJe period of time.

Therefore, the statements and representations set forth and re
fmT d t.o hel'einaboY8 arc -Fabe , lli lendillg, ,lld deceptive.

-\H. 9. In the COlll' e an(l conduc1 of their aforesaid business.

respondents, through their repl'e entatiYes Hnd ellployces haTe usec1

I"lriollS llnfair and decepti, c techniques and practices as a- means of
sel1illg' initirtl 01' supplementaJ COlll'SeS of instruction in modeling,

Typical and illl! tr(1tin J bnt. not. flU inclusive , of snch techniques

1J1d practices n1'8 the. 101l0lying:

1. Respondents . rep1'e;-pntariyes and emp10yees re.pre:-ent to st11-

dents 01' jJl'ospecriY8 stuclents that npon completion of a given course
of instruction , the stl1dellt ,,' j11 Jlnn flchim-ed a. sjJPcjf-jc stnncbn1 of
proficicncy: whereas : in fact : before the giYCJ1 COlll'se of instruction

. completed ;l1H1 before the spccihcd sUmdnnl of profic.iency has been
achieved , the prospect. or tllde111 is subjecred to furthe.r coeT( iYe sales
eiIorts towanl t.he plll'cha p of (1clclitiol1cl1 COllr es of instrllction.

2. n.espon(lents l'epresentt1ri'i' es nn(l ernpJo)'Pcs 1lse intense, emo-

tional and nnrcJcnting sides pressure to persuade a prospectiyc stu-

dent or student to exec-ute a, contract, obligating snch person to pay'
for a. snbstn.nti,llnmnbc.r of hours of moc1eJing or other instruction at

5ubstnntial cost , ,yithout nHol'lilJg sneh person :1 rcasoJlabJc oppor-
tunity to consir1Cl' and comprehend the. scope (ll1c1 extent of the ("011-

tl'ac.hlf1 obligations InnJJyec1. Sneh contracts often proyic1e lor mol'
than forty ('10) hours of mocle1ing illstrnctioll 'irith fl. east to the
prospect or stn(lent from 8200 to oyc.r$;300, depending upon the

type of courses taken , and s11ch person is insistent1y n1'ge- cajoled
and c.oerced to sign such a contract hurriedly a.nc1 preeipitately
and throng)l the use of pel'si tent and emotionally forceful sales
prE'sentntions.

j. 

Hesponclents . representatives and empJoyees represent to pl'O-
spl'ctin; tnclents and stllc1ents that they are assured e.mployment in
spe,-,jfi( interesting ,l1c1 JncrntiY8 jn l)s as profes::ional models, airline




